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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Tiirkiye Is Bankasi A.S. — Dega né Kosové

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tirkiye Is Bankasi A.S. — Dega né Kosové (The
“Bank”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and

statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as at December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Kosovo and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Mazars Kosova Shpk



mazars

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the planning and performance of the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting

and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a
going concern.

_ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance of Tiirkiye Is Bankasi A.S. —
Dega né Kosové regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

a\ February 25,2021
| l'}\H . tr | ﬁ,KG/E
\ ;E ) m‘
| %r\P 'Stl t\k SOVo d’
\NUI: 811335507

‘A

Teit Gjini HENTE
Legal Auditor



Tirkiye is Bankasi A.$.- BRANCH IN KOSOVO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts in EUR)
Notes 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Assets
Césh on hand, at banks and balances 7 20,737,408 22,822,094
with Central Bank
Placements with banks 8 - 3,983,686
Financial investments at amortized cost 9 1,344,904 5138,322
of which restricted at Central Bank 1,344,904 3,018,104
Loans and advances to costumers, net 10 68,873,462 68,315,028
Property and equipment, net " 596,986 768136
Intangible assets, net 12 92,434 88,464
Repossessed collaterals 14 642,333 165,333
Right of use of asset 13 1,708,843 2,014,959
Deferred tax asset 32 11,107 =
Prepaid income tax 15 9,486 9,455
Other assets 16 19,603 38,486
Total assets 103,036,566 103,343,963
Liabilities
Due to customers 17 80,942,006 75,659,528
Due to banks 18 6,000,000 11,612,859
Due to Head Office 19 1,448,744 2,970,181
Other taxes and contribution payable 20 101,967 33,907
Deferred tax liability 32 - 26,256
Deferred revenues 21 - 1,840
Other liabilities 22 308,0:4 194,956
Provisions 23 105,821 97,795
Lease liability 24 1,811,882 1,984,407
Total liabilities 90,718,444 92,581,729
Shareholders' equity
Share capital 10,000,000 10,000,000
Accumulated profit 2,318,122 762,234
Total shareholders' equity 25 12,318,122 10,762,234
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 103,036,566 103,343,963

These Financial Statements were approved on behalf of the Bank on Fel:ruary 23, 2021 by:

/

Faton Ramadani
Chief Financial Officer
Tiirkiye Is Bankasi A.S.
Branch in Kosovo

Afrére Rudi’ /

Partner,Certified Accountant

Deloitte Kosova sh.p.k

The accompanying notes on pages from 8 to 72 form an integral part of :hese Financial Statements.



Tiirkiye is Bankas1A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2020

(Amountsin EUR)

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interestincome

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

Net foreign exchange loss
Otherincome

Total operating income

Credit loss release (expense) on loans and
advancesto customers

Release of expected losses for financial assets
and others

Repossessedassets release of provisions
Release of expected losses (expense) for
guarantees issued to customers and overdraft
unused limits

Operating expenses

Employee benefits

Depreciation and amortization

Profit(Loss) before tax
Income taxexpense

Net profit (loss) for the year
Othercomprehensiveincome

Total comprehensive income (loss) for the
year

Notes

26

27

28
29

10

7,8,9,16
14
22
30

31
11,12,13

32

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
4,482,929 4,814,526
(1,784,258) (2,156,339)
2,698,671 2,658,187
606,315 268,435
(31,655) (9,101)
575,160 259,334
91,776 24,511
20,288 34,245
112,064 58,756
126,963 (961,770)
43,929 57,236
41,333 1,687
31,177 (82,040)
(726,446) (968,207)
(767,220) (878,153)
(428,448) (456,172)
1,707,183 (311,142)
(182,938) (44,092)
1,524,245 (355,234)
1,524,245 (355,234)

The accompanying notes on pages from8 to 72 forman integral part of these Financial Statement.



Tiirkiye is Bankas1A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Amountsin EUR)

Share Retained Total
capital earnings shareholders’ equity
Balance at 1 January 2019 10,000,000 2,050,762 12,050,762
Profit forthe year - (355,234) (355,234)
Othercomprehensiveincome
)TS;?I comprehensive income for the (355,234) (355,234)
Transactions with owners,
recognizeddirectlyinequity
Contributions by and distributions to
owners/dividend i (933,294) (933,294)
Balance at 31 December 2019 10,000,000 762,234 10,762,234
Balance at 1 January 2020 10,000,000 762,234 10,762,234
Changesin accounting policies 31,643 31,643
Profit forthe year - 1,524,245 1,524,245
Othercomprehensiveincome - - -
Total comprehensive income for the i 1,524,245 1,524,245
year
Transactions with owners,
recognizeddirectlyinequity
Contributions by and distributions to i ) i
owners/dividend
Balance at 31 December 2020 10,000,000 2,318,122 12,318,122

The accompanying notes on pages from8 to 72 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.



Tiirkiye is Bankas1A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2020

(Amountsin EUR)

I. Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciationand amortization

Net impairment loss

Provision for legal cases

Net gain/(loss) from investing activities
Interestincome

Interest expense

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Movement in mandatory reservewith CBK

Increase in placements with banks

Decrease (Increase) in loans and advances to customers
Increase in due to customers

Increase (decrease) in tax payable and other liabilities
Deferred revenues

Decrease (Increase) in prepayments and other
receivables

Repossessed assets

Income tax paid

Interest paid

Interest paid right of use

Interest received

Net cash generated from operating activities (1)

I1l. Cashflowsgenerated from/ (used in)

investing activities

Decrease (Increase) in financial assets

at amortized cost

Acquisition of property and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale ofassets

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investingactivities (1)

111. Cash flows generated from/ (used in) financing

activities

Borrowings with the Head Office

Repayment of borrowings

Dividends paid

Lease payments

Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing

activities (1)

IV. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(1+11+111)

V. Cashand cash equivalents atthe beginning of the

year

V1. Cash and cash equivalents atthe end of the year
(IV+V)

Notes

11,1213

23

26
26

7
8
10
17
20,23
21

16

14
32

27

11

19
18

24

Year enced Year enced
31 December2020 31 December2019
1,707,183 (311,142)
428,447 456,172
(243,402) 984,886
8,026 97,795
(8,290) -
(4,482,929) (4,814,526)
1,784,258 2,156,339
(1,927,101) 1,080,138
4,000,000 2,000,000
(424,562) 15,820,315
5,066,714 17,296,240
151,601 (1,864)
(1,840) (8,297)
18,874 (32,845)
(435,667) -
(127,954) (131,562)
(1,448,698) (2,012,550)
(138,819) (144,497)
4,498,249 4,905,228
8,424,090 37,339,830
3,801,009 (3,032,087)
(1,983) (31,070)
(15,272) (4,722)
8,290 -
3,792,044 (3,067,879)
(1,515,274) (31,116,818)
(5,600,000) (1,400,000)
- (933,294)
(110,421) (59,555)
(7,225,695) (33,509,667)
4,990,439 762,284
13,277,031 12,514,746
18,267,470 13,277,030

The accompanying notes on pages from8 to 72 to the forman integral part of these Financial Statements.



Tiirkiye is Bankas1 A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statementsasat and for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Amountsin EUR, unless otherwise stated)

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Tiirkiye Is Bankas1A.S.— Branch in Kosovo (“the Bank” or “the Branch”)is a branch of Tiirkiye Is Bankas1A.S., a
Turkish entity. The Bank operates asa commercialand savings bank to all categories of customers within Kosovo.

The Bank operates under a banking licence numbered 011 issued by the Central Bank of the Republic of Kosovo,
registered at the Ministry of Trade and Industry on 19 November 2012 with business registration number 70899345
and fiscal number 600886131. The Bank operates with two branches. One office is located at Str. Ukshin Hoti No
100, in Pristina and the other one at Zahir Pajaziti Street, in Prizren.

The bankhad 30employees as at December 31%, 2020 (29 employees as at December 31%, 2019)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(@ Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and
its interpretations adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared onthe historical cost basis.
(c) Going concern

The Bank’s management has made an assessment of'its ability to continue as a going concern and s satisfied that it
has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concem.
Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on thegoing concern basis.

(d) Functional and presentation currency
The Financial Statements are presented in EUR, which is also the Bank’s functional currency.
() Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed onan
ongoingbasis. Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively. Information aboutimpairment of financial assets
and fair values of financial instruments is described in note 5.



Tiirkiye is Bankas1 A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statementsasat and for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Amountsin EUR, unless otherwise stated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
€)] Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currency at exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate whenthe fairvalue was determined. Foreign currency differences arising on translationare recognized
in profit orloss.

(b) Interestincome and expense

Interestincome and expenseare recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest
rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financialinstrument (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to:

—the gross carrying amountofthe financial asset; or
—the amortized cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interestrate, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual tems of
the financialinstrument, but not future credit losses. For credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective
interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows including expected credit losses.

The calculation ofthe effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or receivedthatare an
integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisitionor issue of a financial asset or financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset(when theasset is notcredit-impaired) or to the amortized cost ofthe liability.

Interestincome is calculated by applyingthe effective interestrate to the gross basis of the financial asset.

Under IFRS 9 for financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of theasset. The calculation of interest income
does notrevertto agross basis, evenifthe credit risk of the assetimproves.

(©) Fees and commissions

Fees and commissionincome and expense thatare integral to the effective interestrate onafinancial asset or liability
areincluded in the measurement of theeffectiveinterestrate.

Under IFRS 15 the Bankearns fee and commission income froma diverse range of financial services it provides to
its customers. Fee and commission income is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Bank expects to be entitled in exchange for providing theservices.

The performanceobligations, as well as the timing of their satisfaction, are identified, and determined, at the inception
of'the contract. The Bank’s revenue contracts do nottypically include multiple performance obligations,

Bank provides aservice to its customers, considerationis invoiced and generally due immediately uponsatisfaction
of aservice providedat a point in time.

The Bankhas generally concluded thatit is the principalin its revenuearrangements because it typically controks the
services beforetransferring themto the customer.



Tiirkiye is Bankas1 A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statementsasat and for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Amountsin EUR, unless otherwise stated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises currentand deferred tax. Income taxexpense is recognized in the profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates toitems recognized directly in equity orin Other Comprehensive Income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxis recognized in respectoftemporary differences betweenthe carrying amounts ofassetsand liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the taxrates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have beenenacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred taxasset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred taxliabilities are recognized foralltaxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assetsand deferred taxliabilities are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extentthat
it is no longer probable that the related taxbenefit and taxobligation, respectively will be realized. Additional incorme
taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the liability to pay the related
dividend is recognized.

(e) Leases

The Bankassesses whethera contractis or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Bank recognizes a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respectto all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except
for short-termleases (defined as leases with a lease termof 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as
tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture, vehicles andtelephones). Forthese leases, the Bank
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense ona straight-line basis over the termofthe lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits fromthe leased assets are
consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by usingthe rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
Bank usesits incremental borrowingrate.

Lease payments included in the measurementofthe lease liability comprise:

- Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any leaseincentives receivable;

- Variable lease payments thatdepend onan indexorrate, initially measured usingtheindexor rate at
the commencement date;

- The amount expectedto be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

- The exercise price of purchase options, if the lesseeis reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease termreflects the exercise ofan optionto
terminate the lease.

10



Tiirkiye is Bankas1 A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statementsasat and for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Amountsin EUR, unless otherwise stated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
e) Leases (continued)

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. The lease liability is
subsequently measured by increasing the carryingamount toreflect intereston the lease liability (using the effective
interest method) and by reducingthe carrying amountto reflect the lease payments made.

The Bank re-measures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments usinga revised discount rate.

The lease payments change due to changes in an indexor rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an
unchangeddiscountrate (unless the lease payments change is due to a changein a floating interestrate, in which case
a revised discountrate is used).

A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the lease termofthe modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using areviseddiscount rateat the effective date of the modification.

The right-of-useassets comprisethe initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at
orbefore thecommencementday, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently
measured at costlessaccumulated depreciationand impairment losses.

Wheneverthe Bankincurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it
is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by theterms and conditions ofthelease, a provision
is recognized and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are
included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease termand useful life of the underlying asset. Ifa
lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use assetreflects thatthe Bank expects to
exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset.
The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position.

The Bank applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an indexor rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the
right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “Other expenses” in profit orloss.

11



Tiirkiye is Bankas1 A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statementsasat and for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Amountsin EUR, unless otherwise stated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
e) Leases (continued)

As apractical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any
lease and associated non-lease components asa single arrangement. The Bank has notused this practical expedient.
For contracts that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Bank
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease componentonthebasis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component andtheaggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Bank has chosen to use the Modified Retrospective Approach in applying IFRS 16. Under the modified
retrospective approach, a lessee will not have to recast comparative financial information. Therefore, the date of initial
application is the first day ofthe annual reporting period in which a lessee first applies the requirements of the new
lease standard. At the date of the initial application ofthe new lease standard, lessees will recognize the cumulative
effect of the initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as of 1st January 2019.
Prior periods are left as is under therecognitionrequirements of IAS 17.

The initial recognition involves calculating the present value of all remaining lease payments using the lessee’s
incremental borrowingrate at the date of initial application and stating the lease liability at the calculated amount on
the balance sheet.

In orderto calculatethe present values of the remaining lease payments the Bank used an interest rate assigned from
the Treasury Department of the Head Office. The interest rate used represents the borrowing rate that the Group
usually charges in the interbank borrowings. The Bankhasusedan interest rate of 7.57% to discount lease payments
for the branch of Prishtinaand Head Office, and has usedan interest rate of 6.71% to discount lease payments for the
branch of Prizren.

There are two options for measuring the right-of-use asset ontransition. It is important to note that thisis done ona
lease-by-lease basis:

i) Thefirst approach is to measure the asset as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement date
of a lease using a discount rate based on the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application.

ii) The second approach is to measure the asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments recognized immediately before the date of initial
application.

iii) The Bankhas chosento apply the second method above and measuring the lease liability equal to right of
use asset adjusted by any prepayment. The application of IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as
operating leases under IAS 17 resulted in the recognition of right-of-use assets of EUR
2,273,091(including prepaid leases) and lease liabilities of EUR 2,043,962.

12



Tiirkiye is Bankas1 A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statementsasat and for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Amountsin EUR, unless otherwise stated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
f) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Bank’s statement of financial position when the Bank
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted fromthe fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in
profit orloss.

g) Financial assets

All regularway purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases orsales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or conventionin the marketplace.

All recognized financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,
dependingon theclassification of the financial assets.

The Bankrecognized in its financial statements only financial assets that are held at amortized cost.

Classification offinancial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortized cost:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and
b) the contractualterms ofthe financial assetgive riseon specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principaland intereston the principalamountoutstanding.
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):
a) thefinancialasset is held within a business model whose objectiveis achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows andselling thefinancial assets; and
b) the contractual terms of the financial assetgive rise onspecified dates to cash flows thatare solely payments
of principaland intereston the principalamountoutstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the Bank may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a

financialasset:

a) the Bank may irrevocably elect to presentsubsequent changes in fair value ofan equity investment in
othercomprehensive income if certain criteria are met (see below); and

b) the Bank may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (see below).

13



Tiirkiye is Bankas1 A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statementsasat and for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Amountsin EUR, unless otherwise stated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
g) Financial assets (continued)
(i) Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the
debtinstrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, tothegross carryingamount of thedebt instrument oninitial
recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is
calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortized cost of
the debt instrument oninitial recognition.

The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initialamount and the maturity amount, adjusted forany loss allowance. The gross carryingamount of
a financialasset is the amortized costofa financial asset before adjusting forany loss allowance.

Interestincome is recognized using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortized cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interestincome is calculated by applying theeffective interestrate to thegross carrying amountofa financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the effective interestrate tothe
amortized cost of thefinancial asset. If, in subsequentreporting periods, the credit risk onthe credit-impaired financial
instrumentimproves so that the financial assetis no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognized by applying
the effective interestrate to thegross carrying amountofthe financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the Bank recognizes interest income by applying the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset from initial recognition. The

calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial as set subsequently improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interestincome is recognized in profit orlossandis included in the 'financeincome — interest income' line item (note
26).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
g) Financial assets (continued)
(ii) Debtinstrumentsclassifiedasat FVTOCI

The corporate bonds held by the Bank are classified as at FVTOCI. The corporate bonds are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, changes in the carrying amount of these corporate bonds as a result of
foreign exchange gains and losses (see below), impairment gains or losses (see below), and interest income calculated
using theeffective interest method (see (i) above) are recognized in profit or loss. The amounts that are recognized in
profitor loss are the same as the amounts that would have been recognized in profit or loss if these corporate bonds
had been measured at amortized cost. All other changes in the carrying amount of these corporate bonds are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve.
When these corporate bonds are de-recognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(iii) Financial assetsat FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

a) Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Bank designates an equity
investment thatis neither held fortrading nora contingentconsideration arising froma business combination
as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

b) Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (so called ‘accounting mismatch’) that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on themon different bases. The Bank
has not designated any debtinstruments asat FVTPL.

C) Financialassetsat FVTPLare measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognized in profit or losstotheextentthey are not part of a designated hedging relationship.
The net gainorloss recognized in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

(iv) Foreignexchange gainsand losses

a) The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spotrate at the end of eachreporting period. Specifically, for financial
assets measured at amortized cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,  exchange
differences are recognized in profit orloss in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item;

b) b) for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences on the amortized cost ofthe debt instrument are recognized in profit or loss in the ‘other gains
and losses’ line item. Other exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income in the
investments revaluationreserve;

C) c) for financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognized in profit orloss in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item; and
d) d) forequity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive

income in the investments revaluation reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
g) Financial assets (continued)
(v) Derecognitionoffinancial assets

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows fromthe asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Bank neithertransfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Bank recognizes its retained interest in the assetand an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.

On derecognition ofa financial assetmeasured at amortized cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sumofthe consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss. In addition, on derecognition
ofan investment in a debtinstrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gainor loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

(vi) Write of policy

The Bankwrites off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhaustedall practical recovery efforts and has
concluded there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement activity and (ii) where the Bank’s recovery method is foreclosing on
collateraland thevalue ofthe collateralis such thatthereis no reasonable expectation of recoveringin full. The Bank
may write-off financial assets thatare still subject to enforcementactivity.

h) Financial liabilities

(i) Classification asdebtorequity

Debt and equity instruments are classified either as financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements andthe definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized costusing the effective interestmethod orat FVTPL
However, financial liabilities thatarise when a transfer of a financial assetdoes not qualify for derecognition orwhen
the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial guarantee contracts issued by the Bank, are measured in
accordancewith the specific accounting policies set outbelow.

(i) Financial liabilitiesat FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of anacquirer
in a business combination, (ii) held for trading or (iii) designatedas at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for tradingif:

a) it has been acquired principally forthe purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

b) oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Bank manages
togetherandhas a recentactual pattern of short-termprofit-taking; or

c) it isa derivative, except fora derivative that is a financial guarantee contract ora designated and effective
hedginginstrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

h) Financial liabilities (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
businesscombination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

a) such designation eliminates orsignificantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

b) the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Bank’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and informationabout the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

c) it forms partofa contract containingone or more embedded derivatives.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship The net gain or
loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other
gains and losses’ line in profit orloss.

However, for financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition ofthe effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create orenlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value
ofliability is recognized in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are
recognized in other comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferredto retained earnings upon de-recognition of the financial liability.

Gains or losses onfinancial guarantee contracts issued by the Bank that are designated by the Bank as at FVTPL are
recognized in profit orloss.

(iii) Financial liabilities measured subsequentlyat amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expenseoverthe relevant period. The effective interestrate is the rate thatexactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that forman integral part of the effective interestrate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized cost of a financial liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

h) Financial liabilities (continued)

(iv) Financial guarantee contractliabilities

A financial guarantee contractis a contractthat requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder

fora loss itincurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordancewith the terms ofa debt

instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and, if not designatedas at FVTPL

and do not arise fromatransfer of an asset, are measured subsequently at the higher of:

- theamountofthe loss allowancedetermined in accordance with IFRS 9 (see financial assets above); and

- theamount recognized initially less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with
the revenue recognitionpolicies setoutabove.

(v) Foreignexchange gainsand losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortized cost at the end of
each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortized cost of the
instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the ‘other gains and losses’ line itemin profit
or loss forfinancial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging relationship. Forthose which are designated
as a hedging instrument for a hedge of foreign currency risk, foreign exchange gains and losses are recognizd in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate componentofequity.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL,
the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognized in profit or loss for
financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging relationship.

(vi) De-recognitionoffinancial liabilities

The Bank de-recognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit orloss.

When the Bank exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with the substantially
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Bank accounts for substantial modification of terms of an
existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new
liability. Itis assumed thattheterms are substantially different if the discounted presentvalue of the cash flows under
the newterms, including any fees paid net ofany fees received and discounted using the original effective rate is at
least 10 per cent different fromthe discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. If the modification is not substantial, the difference between:
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

h) Financial liabilities (continued)

(1) the carrying amountofthe liability before the modification;and
(2) the present value of the cash flows after modification is recognized in profit or loss as the modification gain or
loss within other gainsand losses.

(i) Identificationand measurement of impairment

The Bank recognizes loss allowances for ECL on the following financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL:
—financialassets thatare debtinstruments; and

— loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts issued (previously, impairment was measured under IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets).

The Bank will recognize loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except in the following cases, for
which the amount recognized will be 12-month ECLs:

— debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. The Bank considers a
debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalentto the globally understood definition of
‘investment-grade’; and

— loans and debt investmentsecurities for which credit risk has not increased significantly sinceinitial recognition.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses and will be measured as follows:

— Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: the present value of all cash shortfalls —i.e. the
difference between thecash flows dueto the entity in accordance with the contract andthe cash flows thatthe Bank
expects to receive;

— Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: the difference between the gross carryingamountand
the present value of estimated future cash flows;

— Undrawn loan commitments: the present value ofthe difference between the contractual cash flows that are dueto
the Bank if the commitment is drawn down andthe cash flows that the Bank expects to receive; and

— Financial guarantee contracts: the present value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts
that the Bank expectsto recover.

Probability of default

Represents the probability of default of the credit over a specified time period. In this context, the Bank has developed

models to calculate 12 month and life time default probabilities by usinginternal rating models.
Creditrisk grades

The Bankallocates eachexposure to a credit risk grade based on requirements set forth by Credit Risk Managenment
regulation by using qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default.

Each exposure will be allocated to a credit risk grade on initial recognition based onavailable information about the
borrower. Exposures will be subject to ongoing monitoring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a
different credit risk grade.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
i) Financial assets andfinancial liabilities

Significantincrease in creditrisk

Significant increase in the risk of default and default itself are key determinants for calculation of the expected credit
losses.

Ateachreporting date, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk by comparing:
(i) Theriskthatthe loan will default at or after the reporting date with

(i) Therisk of default assessed at or after the date of its initial recognition.

When performing this assessment, the Bank considers reasonable and supportable forward-looking and historical
information for individual loans, or group of loans when reasonable and supportable information is not available on
an individual basis. Measurementof the ECLs pattern reflects the general pattern of deteriorationorimprovementin
the credit quality of financial instruments, expressed in terms of significant increase in credit risk. When the financial
instruments are initially originated, loss allowance is measured at anamountequal to 12-month expected credit losses.
When the instrument’s risk of default has significantly increased since its origination, the Bank shall measure loss
allowance at an amountequal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Determiningwhether creditrisk has increased significantly

Under IFRS 9, when determining whether the credit risk (i.e. risk of default) on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Bank considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevantand
available without undue cost or effort, including both quantitativeand qualitative information and analysis based on
the Bank’s historical experience, expert credit assessment and forward-looking information.

The Bank has identified whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an exposure that changes the
regulatory risk classification from standard to watch assessed in line with the Bank’s policy for regulatory risk
classification. Allloans showingsignificantincreasein credit risk are classified in Stage 2.

As abackstop, and as required by IFRS 9, the Bank presumptively considers that a significant increase in credit risk
occurs no later than when anasset is more than 30 days pastdue. The Bank determines days pastdue by counting the
number of days since the earliestelapsed due date in respectof which full payment has notbeen received.

Beside the backstop indicator, the Bankalso considers as a significant increase in credit risk if the loan is classified
from standard to watch oraworse risk grade or other loans of the same customer with the Bank are classified from
standard to watch or a worse risk grade. The Bank also considers that the risk has increased if the client requests a

restructuring with easing teams such as: extended maturity, lower instalment, lower interest rate, waivers of accrued
penalties and interest.

20



Tiirkiye is Bankas1 A.S.-BRANCH INKOSOVO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statementsasat and for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Amountsin EUR, unless otherwise stated)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
i) Financial assets andfinancial liabilities (continued)
Methodology on calculation of ECL

PD calculation

Probability of Default: Represents the likelihood ofa default overa specified time period.
In this context, the Bank has developed models to calculate 12-month and life-time default probabilities by using
internalrating based on credit rating models.

There has been asegmentation of the loan portfolio based on the similar characteristics of risk with the purposes of
PD calculation. Below are presented the segments of the loan portfolio:

e Business Loans
e Individual Loans

Calculation of 12-month PD is done onmonthly basis for the whole period of historical data and the long-run average
of PDs is used for Business and Individual portfolio separately.

Lifetime PD is calculated by adding external factors (benchmarking) over the 12-month PD. In this regard the change
of NPL ratio from 2014 to 2019 is used as external factor. So it is taken into considerationthatif the NPL ratio in the
market will reach the maximal point (as in 2014) this will affect the probability of default of the ISBANK Branch as
well.

LGD calculation

Loss Given Default (LGD): Defined as the damage caused by the default of borrower to the total balance of the
exposure at the time of default. The LGD estimates are determined in terms of credit risk groups that are detailed in
the Bank’s dataresources and system facilities. The model used for the estimation of the LGD was established by
taking into account the direct cost items during the collection process, based on the historical data of the Bank’s
collection, cash flows are discounted at effective interestrates.
There has been a grouping intothe following segments of the loan portfolio with the purposes of LGD calculation:
e Business Loans
¢ Individual Loans

The Bank reviews on annual basis the set limits and criteria to ensure that they remain valid following possible
changes in the loans portfolio size and composition.

Bxposure at Default:

Forloans covered by cash, the balance of cashatthereporting date, for loans thatare notcovered by cash, the balance
calculated usingthe Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) is represented by Exposure to Failure. Credit Conversion Factor:
Estimated for non-cash loans (outstanding limit for renewables, commitments, non-cash loans, etc.) The Banks
historical limit usage data for revolving loans are: analyzed and the amount of the limit that can be used up to the
predetermined time is estimated. For non-cash loans, the loan to cash conversion ratio is estimated by analyzing the
type of product and the amount of past bank compensation. Represents the balance at the date of report. Expected
credit loss is reflected in the income statement. Released provisions in the current year are accounted under “Expected
Credit Losses”, thereleased portion ofthe free provisions set aside in previous years is transferred to "Other Operating
Income”.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
i) Financial assets andfinancial liabilities (continued)
Stage 1:

An importantdeterminant for calculating the expected credit loss in accordance with IFRS 9 is to assess whether there
is asignificant increase in the credit risk of the financial asset. Financial assets thathave notexperienced a significant
increase in credit risk since the initial recognition are monitored in the first stage. Impairment for credit risk for the
Stage 1financialassets is equal to the 12-month expected credit losses.

Stage 2:

Financial assets that experienced a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, are transferred to
Stage 2. The expected credit loss ofthese financial assets are measured atan amount equal to the instrument’s lifetime
expected credit loss. In orderto classify a financial asset in the second stage, the following criteria is considered:
Overdue more than 30and less thanorequal to 90days

- Restructuringofthe loan

- When a credit facility has showna significant deterioration since origination, the Bank records an allowance based
on Lifetime PD.

- Credit facilities, where the credit risk has improved, and the loan has beenreclassified from Stage 3to Stage 2.

In the event of a significant deterioration in the probability of default, the credit risk is considered to be increased
significantly andthe financial asset is classified as stage 2. The absolute and gradual thresholds used to increase the
probability of default are differentiated on the basis of portfolio type.

Stage 3:

Financial assets with sufficient and fair information for impairment at the reporting date, are classified in the third
stage. Expected credit loss of these financial assets is measured at an amount equal to the lifetime expected c redit
loss.

. Transition to Stage 3is realized when the financial asset is defaulted. A default is considered to have occurred with
regard to a particular obligor orto financial asset when either or both of the two following events have taken place:-
The bankconsiders thatthe obligor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Branchin full, without recourse by
the Branch to actions such as realizing security (if held).

- The financial assetis past due more than 90 days.

The validity of therisk parameter estimates used in the calculation of expected credit losses is reviewed and evaluated
at least annually within the framework of model validation processes. Macroeconomic forecasts and risk delinquency
data usedin risk parameter models are re-evaluated every quarter to reflect the changes in economic conjunctureand
are updatedifneeded.

While calculating the expected credit loss, aside fromassessment of whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk or not, basic parameters expressed as probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default are used.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
i) Financial assets andfinancial liabilities (continued)
Modified financial assets

The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing market conditions,
customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential credit deterioration of the customer. An
existing loan whose terms have been modified may be derecognized and the renegotiated loan recognized as a new
loan at fair value.

POCI: Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial
recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently
recognized based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognized or released to the extent that there is a
subsequent change in the expected credit losses. For financial assets for which the Bank has no reasonable
expectations of recoveringeither the entire outstandingamount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset is reduced. This is considereda (partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

Under IFRS 9, when the terms of a financial assetare modified and the modification does notresult in derecognition,
the Bank will consider whether the asset’s credit risk has increased significantly by analyzing quantitative and
qualitative factors affecting risk of default.

The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as ‘forbearance activities’) to maximize
collection opportunities and minimize the risk of default. Under the Bank’s forbearance policy, loan forbearance is
granted onaselective basis if the debtoris currently in default on its debt orif there is a high risk of default, there is
evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the debtor is
expected to be able to meet the revised terms.

Generally, forbearanceis a qualitative indicator of default and credit impairment and expectations of forbearance are
relevant to assessing whether thereis a significantincreasein credit.

Following forbearance, a customer needs to demonstrate consistently good payment behavior over eight months
before the exposure is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLSs.

Inputsinto measurementof ECLs

The key inputsinto themeasurementof ECLs are likely to be the termstructures of the following variables:
—PD;

— loss given default (LGD); and

—exposure at default (EAD).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
i) Financial assets andfinancial liabilities (continued)

Presentation of allowance for ECL inthe statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial positionas follows:

— financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deductionfromthe gross carryingamount of the assets;

— loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a provision;

—where a financial instrument includes botha drawn and an undrawn component, and the Bank cannot identify the
ECL on the loan commitment component separately fromthose on the drawn component: the Bank presents a
combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn
component is presented as a provision;and

—instruments measured at amortized cost: lossallowance is recognized in the statement of financial position.

1) Loans and advances

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are notquoted in
an active market. Loans and advances to banks and loans and advances to customers are classified as loans and
receivables.

All'loans and advances are initially recognized atfair value. After initial recognition, these are subsequently measured
at amortized costs using the effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
issue costsandany discount or premiumon settlement.

Loans and advances are reported netof provisions for loan losses.
k) Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with central banks and highly
liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less fromthe acquisition datethatare subject toan
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank in the management of its short-term
commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized costin the statement of financial position.
1) Deposits and borrowings

Depositsandborrowings are the Bank’s main sources of debt funding.
Deposits and borrowings are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction costs, and
subsequently measured at theiramortized cost using the effective interestmethod.

m) Repossessedassets

Collateralheld under loan agreement can only be possessed by the Bank in case ofborrower’s default and conduct of
legal procedures in accordance with legislation of Kosovo which enable the Bank to take full legal title and ownership.
Only after the completion of these procedures, the Bank can sell or transfer the collateral. Repossessed assets are
initially recognized at the amount stipulated by the court order and are subsequently measured at the lower of cost
and net realizable value and any gainor loss fromthe sale of theseassets is recognized in the profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
m) Repossessedassets (continued)

Fromthe initial recognition, the Bank classifies the repossessed property at a minimum of substandard classification
and set aside provisioning according to classification. In addition, the Bank recognizes repossessed collateral as an
asset only when it has fulllegal title of the collateraland the fair value of collateral can be determined re liably. The
Bank cannot sell, transfer or re-pledge the collateral if legal procedures for transfer of ownership as a result of default
have not beencompleted. The Bank holds the possession of properties acquired through enforcementin the form of
a mortgage, for a maximal period of five years. If, within five years, the asset has not been sold by the Bank, it is
written down to zero value.

n) Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discountis recognized as finance cost.

0) Employee benefits
Q) Mandatory social security contributions

The Bank makes only mandatory social security contributions that provide pension benefits for employees upon
retirement. The Government of Kosovo is responsible for providing the legally set minimum threshold for pensions
in Kosovoundera defined contribution pension plan. The Company’s contributions to the pension plan are charged
to profitorloss as incurred.

9)] Property and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Purchased software that is essential to the operation of the respective device s capitalized as part of thatdevice.

When parts ofan itemof property and equipment havedifferentuseful lives, they are accounted for as separate itens
(major components) of property and equipment.

Any gain or loss arisingonthe disposal of an itemof property and equipment is determined as thedifference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amountofthe asset and recognized in profit or loss.

(i) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an itemof property and equipmentis recognized in the carrying amount of the itemif it
is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Bank and its cost can be
measured reliably. Thecosts of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipmentare recognized in profit or loss as
incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
P Property and equipment (continued)

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values (if not insignificant) are reassessed at the reporting date.

The estimated useful lives forthe current and comparative years were as follows:

e Furniture, fixtures and equipment Syears
e Otherfixed assets Syears
e \khicles 5years

Leaseholdimprovements are depreciated over 10years which is the shorter of the lease termand their useful lives.
0)] Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful life that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect ofany changes in estimate beingaccounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful life of the software is five years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

r) Grants

Grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Bank will comply with the conditions attaching
to themand that the grants will be received. Grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
periods in which the Bank recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, grants are recognized as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferredto profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives ofthe related assets.

S) Financial guarantees and loan commitments

Financial guarantees are contracts thatrequire the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.
Such financial commitments are recorded in the statement of financial position if and when they become payable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1) Taxation

Currentincome taxis calculated based on theincome taxregulations applicable in Kosovo, using taxrates enacted at
the balance sheet date. The taxrate on corporate income is set at 10% in accordance with Kosovo tax regulations
currently in force, Lawno. 06/L-105 “On Corporate Income Tax”, published on June 27,2019

The income tax charge in the profit and loss forthe year comprises currenttaxand changes in deferred tax. Current
tax is calculated on the basis of the expected taxable profit for the year using the tax rates enforced or substantially
enactedat the balance sheet date.

Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the profit and loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in otheryears and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. Taxes
otherthanincome taxes are recorded within operating expenses.

Deferred income tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method for temporary differences arising
between the taxbase ofassets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred taxassets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred taxassets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related taxbenefit will be realised. Deferred taxassets and liabilities are measured at taxrates that
are expected to applyto the period whentheassetis realised or the liability is settled based ontaxrates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred taxassets and liabilities are offset when there is
legally enforceable right toset off current taxassets against taxliabilities and whenthey relateto income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority.
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4.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Initial application of new amendments to the existing standards effective for the current reporting period

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” - Definition of a Business (effective for business
combinations forwhich the acquisition date is on or afterthe beginning ofthe first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and to asset acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of that
period).

Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
(effective forannual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and IAS 8 “Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Fstimates and Errors” - Definition of Material (effective for annual periods
beginningon orafter 1 January 2020),

Amendments to IFRS 16 “Leases” - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (effective for annual periods
beginningon orafter 1 June 2020. Earlier application is permitted, including in financial statements not yet
authorisedforissue at 28 May 2020. The amendment is also available for interimreports.),*

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020).

The adoption of these new standards, amendments to the existing standards and interpretation has notled to any
material changes in the Bank’s financial statements.
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4.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS (CONTINUED)

ii) Standards and amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB and adopted by the EU but not yet
effective

Atthe date of authorization of these financial statements, the following amendments to the existing standards were
issuedby IASBwhich are not yeteffective:

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” includingamendments to IFRS 17 (effective forannual periods beginning
onorafter1 January 2023),

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” - Reference to the Conceptual Framework with
amendmentsto IFRS 3 (effective forannual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022),

Amendments to IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” — Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying
IFRS 9 (the expiry date forthe temporary exemption from IFRS 9 was extended to annual periods beginning
onorafterl January 2023),

Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” andIAS 28 “Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures” - Sale or Contribution of Assets betweenan Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
and furtheramendments (effective date deferred indefinitely until the research project ontheequity method
has been concluded

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” - Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-Current (effective forannual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2023),

Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” - Proceeds before Intended Use (effective for
annual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2022),

Amendments to IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” - Onerous Contracts
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (effective forannual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2022),
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”, IFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” and
IFRS 16 “Leases” - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform— Phase 2 (effective forannual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021),

Amendments to various standards due to “Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2018 -2020)” resulting from the
annual improvement project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and IAS 41) primarily with a view to
removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording (The amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9 and IAS 41 are
effective forannual periods beginningon orafter 1 January 2022. The amendment to IFRS 16 only regards
anillustrative example, so no effective date is stated.)

The Bankanticipates that the adoption of these new standards and amendments tothe existing standards will have no
material impact on the financial statements of the Bank in the period of initial application.
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5. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Management discusses with the Audit Committee the development, selection and presentation of the Bank's critical
accounting policies and their application, as well as assumptions made about significant estimation uncertainties.
Information aboutthe assumptions and estimates of uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment within the next financial year and of the critical judgments in applying the accounting policies that have
the most significant effecton theamounts recognized in the separate financial statements are disclosed below.
These disclosures supportcomments on financial risk management.

a) Expected Credit Losses

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are assessed for impairment on a basis described in Note 4. The Bank
reviews its assumptions and judgments on a regular basis.

The Bankmeasures the expected credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:

(1) an unbiased and probability -weighted amountthat is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

(i) the time value of money;and

(iii) reasonable and supportable information thatis available without undue costor effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

b) Determining fair values

The determination of fair value for financial assets and financial liabilities for which there is no observable market
price requires theuse of valuation techniques as described in Note 3. For financial instruments thattrade infrequently
and have little price transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgement depending
on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific
instrument.

The Bank measures fair values using the following hierarchy of methods:
Level 1: Quoted market price in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs. This category includes instruments valued using: quoted
market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for similar instruments in markets that are
considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable frommarket data.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significantunobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the
valuation technique includes inputs notbased on observable data and the unobservable inputs could have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.

The estimation of the fair value is disclosed below.
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5. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

C) Disclosure andestimation of fair value

Fair value estimates are based on existing financial instruments on the Bank’s financial position statement without
attempting to estimate the value of anticipated future business and thevalue of assets and liabilities notconsidered
financial instruments.

Financial instruments —fair value hierarchy

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments measured and not measured at fairvalue and
analysesthemby the level in the fair value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorized. No

items have fair value measurements in accordanceto Level 1.

2020 2019
. . Carrying .
Car\glllr:g Fairvalue value Fairvalue
Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assetsnot
measured at fair value
Financial investmentsat {4 344 904 | 1,344,904 - 5,138,322 | 5,138,322 ;
amortized cost
g;rfﬂs"” hand and at 29,737,408 -1 20,737,408 | 22,822,094 -1 22,822,094
Placementsto Banks - - - 3,983,686 - 3,998,434
Loans and advances to 68,873,462 -1 69,026,812 i 68,264,165 -1 67,397,303
customers
Other financial assets 661,806 661,806 184,498 - 184,498
Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Due to customers 67,542,295 - 68,014,144 66,874,632 - 66,517,872
Borrowings 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 11,612,859 - 11,595,089
Other financial 342,147 342,147 129,842 : 129,842
liabilities
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5. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments —fair value hierarchy

Fair value for financial assets and liabilities above have been determined using Level2and Level 3 input described
above.

Fair value estimates are based on existing financial instruments on the Bank’s financial position statement without
attempting to estimate the value of anticipated future business and the value of assets and liabilities not considered
financial instruments.

Placementsto Banks
Due from other banks include inter-bank placements and accounts. As loans, advances and deposits are short term
and at floating rates, their fair value is considered to equateto their carrying amount.

Financialinvestments at amortized cost

Investments includetreasury bonds issued by the Governmentof Kosovo which are bought with the intention to hold
them till maturity. The fair value has been estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on a current yield
curve appropriate forthe remaining termto maturity.

Loansand advances to customers

Where available, the fair value of loans and advances is based on observable market transactions. Where observable
market transactions are not available, fair value is estimated using valuation models, such as discounted cash flow
techniques. Input intothevaluation techniques includes expected lifetime credit losses, interest rates and prepayment
rates. To improve theaccuracy of thevaluation estimate for retailand smaller commercial loans, homogeneous loans
are grouped into portfolios with similar characteristics.

The Bank’s loan portfolio has an estimated fair value approximately equal to its book value due eitherto their short-
term nature or to underlying interest rates which approximate market rates. The majority of the loan portfolio is
subject tore-pricing within ayear.

Due to customers, borrowings and other financial liabilities

The fair value of liabilities and Due to customers is estimated using discounted cash flow techniques, applying the
rates that are offered for deposits and subordinated debt of similar maturities and terms. The fair value of deposits
payable on demandis the amount payable at thereporting date.

Potential impacts of COVID-19

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Oraanizationdeclared the outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19) a pandemic.
As a result, economic uncertainties have arisen which were likely to negatively impact net income and the
measurement of assets and liabilities. However, the pandemic has not hadany impact in the activity of the Bank for
the vear 2020. Atthe currenttime, we are unable to quantify the potential effects of this pandemic on our financial
statements.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management process and the functions involved in the process are some of the primary responsibilities of the
Board of Directors of the Parent Company (Head Office). The Risk Management Department, which operates under
the Board of Directors, has been organized as Asset-Liability Management Risk Unit, Credit Risk and Economic
Capital Unit, Operational Riskand Model \erification and Subsidiary Risk Unit.

The Bank’s risk management process is carried out within the framework of risk policies which are set by the Risk
Management Departmentand issued by the Board of the Directors and written standards which contains risk policies.

These policies which are in line with international practices are general standards which contain: organization and
scopeofthe risk management function, risk measurementpolicies, duties and responsibilities of therisk management
group, procedures for determining risk limits, ways to eliminate limit violationsandapproval and confirmation to be
given in a variety ofevents andsituations. The scope and content ofthe Bank’s risk managementsystemis given by
the main risktypes.

The Bankhas exposure to thefollowing risks fromits use of financial instruments:
credit risk

liquidity risk

e market risk

e operational risks

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each ofthe above risks, the Bank’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Bank’s management of capital.

@ Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bankifa customer or counterparty toa financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Bank’s Loans to customers and other banks and
investments.

Credit risk is defined as the risk of the failure to comply with the requirements or failing to fulfill its obligations
partially ortotally of the counter side of the transaction contractwith the Bank. The methodology and responsibilities
of the credit risk management, controlling and monitoring and the framework of credit risk limitations are specified
with the credit risk policy. The Bank defines, measures and manages credit risk of all products and activities. The
Board of Directors reviews the Bank’s credit risk policies and credit risk strategy on an annual basis as a minimum.
Management is responsible for the implementation of credit risk policies which are approved by the Board of
Directors.

As aresult of loan and credit risks analysis all findings are reportedto the Board of Directors and Management ona
regularbasis. In addition to credit risk assessment process, monitoring of credit risk also comprises monitoring and
managing the credit by sector, security, geography, currency, credit type and credit rating.

As part of the Bank’s credit risk management, as well as limits required by legal regulations, the Bank utilizes the
risk limits to undertake the maximum credit risk within risk groups or sectors that the Board of Directors determines.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

€)] Credit Risk (continued)

These limits are determined in such a way that minimize risk concentration within particular sectors. Excess risk
limits up to legal requirements and boundary limits are considered as an exception. The Board of Directors has the
authority to approve exceptions. The results of the control of risk limits and the evaluations of these limits are

presented by Internal Audit and Risk Management Group to Managementandthe Board of Directors.

The Bankuses credit decisionsupport systems which are created for the purpose of credit risk management, lending
decisions, controlling the credit process and credit provisioning. The consistency of the credit decision support
systems with the structure of the Bank’s activities, size and complexity is examined continuously. Credit decision
support systems includethe Risk Committee assessment and approval of Board of Directors.

Maximum Creditexposure

Maximum exposures to credit risk before collateral and other credit enhancements as at 31 December 2020 and 31

December 2019 are as follows:

Balances with Central Bank of Kosovo
Cash at banks

Loans and advances to costumers, net
Financial investments at amortized cost
Guarantees in favor of customers

and credit commitments

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Credit quality by class of financial assets:

31 December 2020

Balances with Central Bank of Kosovo
Cash at banks

Loans and advances to costumers, net
Financial investments at amortized cost
Guarantees in favor of customers and
credit commitments

Maximum exposure to credit risk

31 December 2019

Balances with Central Bank of Kosovo
Cash at banks

Loans and advances to costumers, net
Financial investments at amortized cost
Guarantees in favor of customers and
credit commitments

Maximum exposure to credit risk

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

19,445,500 19,260,798

9,956,902 3,415,406

68,873,462 68,315,028

1,344,904 5,138,322

24,322,877 32,714,484

123,943,643 128,844,038

Nelther past_ due Pas.t due_ but Pas_t due_and TOTAL
nor impaired notimpaired impaired

19,445,500 - - 19,445,500

9,956,902 - - 9,956,902

57,013,784 10,943,030 916,648 68,873,462

1,344,904 - - 1,344,904

23,156,700 1,166,177 - 24,322,877

110,917,788 12,109,208 916,648 123,943,643

Neither pastdue Past due but Past due and
. : . . - . Total
norimpaired  notimpaired impaired

19,260,798 - - 19,260,798
3,415,406 - - 3,415,406
66,708,725 - 1,606,303 68,315,028
5,138,322 - - 5,138,322
32,714,484 - - 32,714,484
127,237,735 - 1,606,303 128,844,038
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

€)] Credit Risk (continued)

Loans and advances to customer’s bears fixed and floating interest rates.

Impaired loans andsecurities

Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities forwhich the Bank determines that it is probable that it will be
unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of the loan/security.

Past due but not impaired loans

Loans and securities, where contractual interest or principal payment are past due, but the Bank believes that
impairment is not appropriate onthebasis ofthe level of security/collateral available and or the stage of collection of

amounts owed to the Bank.

Allowances for impairment

The Bank establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of incurred losses in its loan

portfolio.

Loans and advances to customers, net
Neither past due norimpaired

Past due andimpaired

Pastdue butnotimpaired

Total

The aging analysis of credit risk exposure is as follows:

Category (Aging)

Standard (0days)

Standard (1-30days)

Watch (31-60 days)

Substandard (61-90 days)

Doubtful (91-180 days)

Loss (more than 180days)
Accruedinterest

Less: Deferred disbursement fee

Total Loans at amortized cost, gross
Less: Allowance for impairment
Loans and advances to customers, net

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
57,013,784 66,708,725
10,943,030 -

916,648 1,606,303
68,873,462 68,315,028

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
57,404,112 68,223,510
10,978,139 97,753

387,400 12,972
1,312,825 1,325,532
489,466 482,557
(67,559) (69,412)
70,504,384 70,072,913
(1,630,922) (1,757,885)
68,873,462 68,315,028
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

€)] Credit Risk (continued)
Setout below is an analysis of collateral obtained as coverage in respectof loans and advances to customers:

Loans and advances ~ Maximum exposure Total Surplus Net
to customers to creditrisk Real Estate collateral collateral Exposure
31 December 2019 68,315,028 295,816,586 73,835,635 227,501,558 -
31 December 2020 70,504,654 992,103,461 66,572,802 921,598,807 -

The Bankis not permitted to sell or re-pledge collateral held under loan contracts in absence of default by the owner
of collateral.

The net exposure consists of a loan to a group client approved centrally, for which the collateral is not held locally
but at parent level.

(b) Concentrations

IS Bankhas a credit strategy which determines thetypes of investments (concentrations) based primarily on economic
segments such as industry, trade, construction, etc. Due to the small size of the Republic of Kosovo, geographical
concentrations within Kosovo are not significant; this strategy is reviewed and updated on an annual basis by the
management board or the bank.

The following table breaks down the Bank’s main credit exposureat their net amounts, as categorized by the industry
sectorsof ourcounterparties.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, an analysis of loans to customers and banks by industry sectors was as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Wholesale andretail trade 46,186,423 47,829,150

Electricity, gas, steamand air conditioning supply - 6,231,805
Construction 8,384,860 3,251,781
Manufacturing 9,244,104 7,940,420
Accommodationand food service activities 1,335,223 864,690
Water, supply, sewerage and

waste management and services 415,167 501,138
Individual 875,561 1,079,143
Mining and quarrying 422,076 484,093
Otherservices 2,011,744 387,969
Transportation and storage 519,397 506,551
Administrative and support serviceactivities 3,970 4,744
Professional, scientific and technical activities 683,951 578,282
Information and communication - -
Accruedinterest 489,466 482 557
Deferred revenueon disbursement fee (67,559) (69,412)
Total Loans at amortized cost, gross 70,504,383 70,072,913
Less: Allowance for impairment (1,630,922) (1,757,885)
Loans and advances to customers, net 68,873,461 68,315,028
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(© Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. Liquidity risk may raise as a result of funding long-termassets with short-term resources. Care is taken to maintain the consistency between the maturities of
assetsand liabilities and strategies are usedto acquire funds over longer terms.

Based on cash flow projections, prices are differentiated for different maturities and thereby measures are taken to meet liq uidity requirements; moreover liquidity that may be
required forextraordinary circumstances is estimated and alternative liquidity sources are determined for possible utilization.

The purpose of Liquidity Risk Management is to ensure, as faras possible, that the Bank willalways havesufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both nornal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damageto its reputation. Liquidity Risk Management is handled in collaboration and close supervision
of Treasury Group Departmentin Head Office. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities haveremaining contractual maturities as follows:

31 December 2020 Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5years Over5 years Unspecified Total
Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank 18,267,469 - - - - 11,533,145 29,800,614
Financial investments at amortized cost 9,197 1,346,400 - - 1,355,596
Loans to customers 6,852,234 2,203,476 19,880,214 27,233,900 14,402,118 - 70,571,943
Total assets 25,128,900 2,203,476 19,880,214 28,580,300 14,402,118 11,533,145 101,728,153
Liabilities

Deposits from costumers 17,895,023 6,124,366 26,172,485 30,750,132 - - 80,942,006
Short term borrowings 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
Dues to Head Office 1,249,763 - 138,774 60,206 1,448,744
Other liabilities 288,496 105,246 263,009 1,179,679 423,421 - 2,259,851
Total liabilitiesandequity 25,433,282 6,229,611 26,574,269 31,990,017 423,421 - 90,650,600
Net Position (304,382) (4,026,135) (6,694,055) (3,409,717) 13,978,697 11,533,145 11,077,553
Cumulative net position (304,382) (4,330,518) (11,024,572) (14,434,289) (455,592) 11,077,553 -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(© Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December 2019

Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank
Placements with banks

Financial investments at amortized cost
Loans to customers

Total assets
Liabilities

Deposits from costumers
Short term borrowings

Dues to Head Office

Other liabilities

Total liabilitiesandequity

Net Position

Cumulative net position

Ower5

Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years years Unspecified Total
13,320,053 - - - - 9,563,020 22,883,074
4,001,389 - - - - - 4,001,389
1,756,857 2,173,750 1,246,839 - - 5,177,446

4,900,829 1,710,078 18,084,265 27,511,989 17,935,163 - 70,142,325
22,222,272 3,466,935 20,258,015 28,758,828 17,935,163 9,563,020 102,204,234
12,695,922 6,822,669 31,835,351 24,305,585 - - 75,659,527
7,001,992 2,601,618 2,009,250 - - - 11,612,859
1,950,410 295,951 224,585 499,235 - - 2,970,181
124,837 20,816 205,869 1,189,711 670,812 - 2,212,044
21,773,160 9,741,053 34,275,055 25,994,531 670,812 - 92,454,612
449,111 (6,274,119) (14,017,040) 2,764,297 17,264,351 9,563,020 9,749,622
449,111 (5,825,007) (19,842,047) (17,077,750) 186,601 9,749,622 -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) Market Risk (continued)
i Foreign currency risk (continued)
The following tables present the equivalentamount of financial assets and liabilities by currency as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 as translated into EUR:

2020 EUR TRY UsD GBP CHF Total
Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank 29,458,701 225 227,570 50,912 29,737,408
Financial investments at amortized cost 1,344,904 - - - - 1,344,904
Loans and advances to customers 68,845,175 - 28,287 - - 68,873,462
Total assets 99,648,780 225 255,857 50,912 - 99,955,774
Liabilities

Deposits from costumers 80,412,729 529,261 11 5 80,942,006
Short term borrowings 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
Dues to parent company 1,448,744 - - - 1,448,744
Other liabilities 2,259,851 - - - - 2,259,851
Total liability andequity 90,121,323 - 529,261 11 5 90,650,600
Net position 9,527,456 225 (273,403) 50,901 (5) 9,305,174
Cumulative net position 9,527,456 9,527,681 9,254,278 9,305,179 9,305,174 -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) Market Risk (continued)
i. Foreign currency risk (continued)

2019 EUR TRY USD GBP CHF Total
Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank 22,142,605 36,441 642,781 268 - 22,822,094
Placements with banks 3,983,686 - - - - 3,983,686
Financialinvestments at amortized cost 5,138,322 - - - - 5,138,322
Loans and advances to customers 68,224,958 - 39,208 - - 68,264,165
Total assets 99,489,571 36,441 681,988 268 - 100,208,268
Liabilities

Deposits fromcostumers 75,181,454 - 478,063 10 - 75,659,527
Shorttermborrowings 11,612,859 - - - - 11,612,859
Dues to parent company 2,725,619 - 244,562 - - 2,970,181
Other liabilities 2,211,724 - 320 - - 2,212,044
Total liability and equity 91,731,656 - 722,945 10 - 92,454,612
Net position 7,757,915 36,441 (40,957) 257 - 7,753,656
Cumulative netposition 7,757,915 7,794,356 7,753,399 7,753,656 7,753,656 -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) Market Risk (continued)
ii. Interest rate risk

Interest rate riskis the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate dueto changes in market interest rates and the risk that the maturities of interest bearing assets
differ from the maturities of the interest bearing liabilities used to fund those assets (re-pricing risk). The length of time for which the rate of interest is fixed on a financial
instrument therefore indicates to what extent it is exposed to interest rate risk. The assets and customer term deposits of t he bank carry fixed and variable interest rates while
borrowings are at variable interest rate. The interestrates applicable tofinancial assets and liabilities are disclosed in relevantnote to these financial statements. Interest rate risk
management policy ofthe bank defines the method of identification, measurement, following up and controlling the risk in the event of interest rate modification. The Bank is
exposed to various risks associated with the effects of fluctuations of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. The tables below summarize the Bank’s

exposure to interest rate risks.

2020 Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5years Over5years Non-tl)gger?ra]sg Total
Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank - - - - - 29,737,408 29,737,408
Financial investmentsat amortized cost 9,197 - 1,335,707 - - 1,344,904
Loansto customers - fixed 7,080,113 3,414,096 25,345,097 32,120,423 637,672 - 68,597,402
Loansto customers - variable 15,399 4,586 220,466 35,609 - - 276,060
Total assets 7,104,708 3,418,682 25,565,563 33,491,740 637,672 29,737,408 99,955,773
Liabilities

Deposits from customers 4,495,313 6,124,366 26,172,485 30,750,132 - 13,399,711 80,942,006
Short Term Borrowings 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
Due to Head Office - Fixed - - 138,774 60,206 - 1,249,763 1,448,744
Due to Head Office - Variable - - - - - - -
Other Liahilities 17,691 33,903 157,188 1,179,679 423,421 447,968 2,259,851
Total liabilities 10,513,004 6,158,268 26,468,448 31,990,017 423,421 15,097,442 90,650,600
Net Position (3,408,296) (2,739,586) (902,885) 1,501,723 214,251 14,639,966 9,305,173
Cumulative net position (3,408,296) (6,147,882) (7,050,766) (5,549,043) (5,334,792) 9,305,173
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) MarketRisk (continued)

ii. Interestraterisk

Non-interest

2019 Up to 1 month 1-3months 3-12 months 1-5years Overb5years bearing Total
Assets

Cash and balances with Central Bank - - - - - 22,822,094 22,822,094
Placementswith banks 3,983,686 - - - - - 3,983,686
Financial investmentsat amortized cost 1,743,650 2,157,324 1,237,349 - - 5,138,322
Loansto customers — fixed rate 4,731,949 1,508,085 17,443,318 26,980,530 16,837,732 - 67,501,615
Loansto customers— floating rate 120,502 184,412 295,881 161,755 - - 762,551
Total 8,836,137 3,436,147 19,896,524 28,379,634 16,837,732 22,822,094 100,208,268
Liabilities

Depositsfrom costumers 4,663,164 6,684,179 31,536,989 24,070,582 - 8,704,614 75,659,527
Short term borrowings 7,012,859 2,600,000 2,000,000 - - - 11,612,859
Dues to Head Office — fixed rate 116,663 240,475 465,121 197,512 - 1,950,410 2,970,181
Dues to Head Office — floating rate - - - - - - -
Other liabilities 5,633 10,177 108,073 1,189,711 670,812 227,637 2,212,044
Total 11,798,320 9,534,831 34,110,184 25,457,804 670,812 10,882,661 92,454,612
Net Position (2,962,183) (6,098,684) (14,213,660) 2,921,830 16,166,920 11,939,433 7,753,655
Cumulative net position (2,962,183) (9,060,867) (23,274,527) (20,352,697) (4,185,778) 7,753,655
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(d) Market Risk (continued)
ii. Interest rate risk (continued)

The average effective yields of significant categories of financial assets and liabilities of the Bank as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

2020 2019

Assets usD EUR usbD EUR
Cash and balances with Central Bank N/a N/a

Loans and advances to customers 4.00% 5.53% 4.00% 5.95%
Financial investments at amortized cost N/a 1.70% N/a 1.14%
Liabilities

Customerdeposits 2.34% 2.37% 1.81% 2.40%
Shorttermborrowings N/a 0.01% N/a 0.92%
Dues to parent company N/a 2.68% N/a 2.75%

An analysis of the Bank’s sensitivity to an increase or decrease in market interest rates (assuming no
asymmetrical movement in yield curves and a constant statement of financial position) is as follows:

2020 2019
Increase 1%  Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease 1%
Estimated Profit (loss) effect 93,052 (93,052) 77,537 (77,537)

() Operational risks

Operationalriskis the risk of direct or indirect loss arising froma wide variety of causes associated with the
Bank’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and fromexternal factors other than credit, market
and liquidity risks, such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted
standards of corporatebehavior. Operational risks arise fromall ofthe Banks’s operations.

The Bank’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and
damage to the Bank’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and innovation. The implementation of
controls to address operational risk is supported by the developmentof overall standards for the managemnent
of operational riskand carried out with collaboration with Head Office.

All risks except financial risks are consideredwithin the scope of operational risk. Studies are undertaken by
execution of identification, definition, measurement, analysis, monitoring of operational risk, providing and
reporting the necessary control related to monitoring the progress of the country and world, the development
of techniques and methods, necessary legal reporting, notification and conduct of follow-up transactions.
Studies on the subjectare conducted by the Department of Risk Management.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(e) Operational risks (continued)

Qualitative and quantitative methods are used in a combination for measurement and evaluation of the
operational risks. In this process, information used is obtained from" Impact-Probability Analysis", "Missing

Event Data Analysis”, "Risk Indicators" methods. Methods prescribed by legal regulations are applied as
minimum in determining the capital requirementlevel for the operatingrisk.

All risks are assessed in the context of operational risk, loss events and the risk indicators, together with
operational risks are monitored on a regular basis by the Department of Risk Management and reported
periodically to the Risk Committee and the Board of Directors.

® Capital management

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on
shareholder’s return is also recognized and the Bank recognizes the need to maintain a balance between the
higherreturns thatmight be possible with greater gearingand the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position.

Regulatory Capital

The Bank manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as agoing concern while maximizing
the return to shareholders through the optimization ofthe debt and equity. The Bank’s overall strategy remains
unchanged fromprevious year. In accordance with theregulations of the Central Bank of Republic of Kosovo,
the Bank should maintain a capital equivalency deposit ofnot less than EUR 7,000,000. The Bank monitors
the adequacy of its capital using,among other measures, the rules andratios established by the Central Bank
of Kosovo (“CBK”). The Bank has met the regulatory requirements as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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7. CASH ON HAND AND AT BANKS AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cashonhand and at banks:
Cash on hand 335,006 145,890
Current accountwith banks 9,897,896 3,393,284
Nostro accountwith parent company 69,470 36,440
Cashand cash equivalents 10,302,372 3,575,615
Allowance for ECL/Impairment losses (10,464) (14,318)
Cashon hand and at banks after provisions 10,291,908 3,561,297
Current and Restricted balances with Central Bank:
Unrestricted balances with Central Bank of Kosova 7,965,097 9,701,355
Liquidity reserves (restricted) 5,883,041 6,588,000
Capitalequivalentdeposit (restricted) 5,650,104 3,018,104
CurrentandRestrictedbalances with Central Bank: 19,498,242 19,307,459
Allowance for ECL/Impairment losses (52,742) (46,662)
Currentand Restrictedbalances with Central Bank
after provisions 19,445,500 19,260,797
Total 29,737,408 22,822,094

In accordance with the CBK rules, the Bank should meet the minimum average liquidity requirement. Balances with
Central Bank of Kosovo include amandatory liquidity reserve balance with CBK of EUR 5,883 thousand (31 Decerrber
2019: EUR 6,588 thousand). The liquidity requirement is calculated on a weekly basis as 10% of the deposit base,
defined as the averagetotal deposit liabilities to the non-banking public in EUR and other currencies, over the business
days of the maintenance period. Theassets with which the Bank may satisfy the liquidity requirements are the deposits
in EUR with the CBK and 50% ofthe EUR equivalent of cash denominated in readily convettible currencies. Deposits
with the CBK must not be less than 5% of the applicable deposit base. Balances with CBK at 31 December 2020 and
2019 represent mostly the amount placed with the Central Bank of Kosovo as a capital equivalency deposit, Investrments
in securities arealso used as capital equivalency deposits required for a branch of a foreign bank.
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7. CASH ON HAND AND AT BANKS AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK (CONTINUED)

Cash at bank

Internal rating grade

Stage 1

Total

Standard (0days)

9,967,366

9,967,366

Standard (1-30days)

Watch (31-60days)

Substandard (61-90 days)

Doubtful (91-180 days)

Loss (more than 180days)

Total

9,967,366

9,967,366

Internal rating grade

Stage 1

Total

Standard (0 days)

3,429,724

3,429,724

Standard (1-30days)

Watch (31-60days)

Substandard (61-90days)

Doubtful (91-180 days)

Loss (more than 180days)

Total

3,429,724

3,429,724

As at 1 January 2020

All transfers

Derecognitions other thanwrite-
offs

Repayments andchange in cash
flow

New financial assets originated or
purchased

Write-offs

Foreign currency effectand other
movements

Net change in Profitand Loss
As at 31 December 2020

Gross Carrying amount

Stage 1

12-month
ECL

Stage 2,3
and POCI
Lifetime
ECL

Stage 1

12-month
ECL

ECL
Stage 2,3
and POCI

Lifetime

ECL

Total

3,429,724

6,537,641

(14,318)

3,854

3,415,406

6,541,495

3,854

3,854

9,967,366

(10,464)

9,956,902
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As at 1 January 2019
All transfers

Derecognitions other thanwrite-

offs

Repaymentsandchange in cash

flow

New financialassets originated or

purchased
Write-offs

Foreign currency effectand other

movements

Net change in Profitand Loss

As at 31 December 2019

CASH ON HAND AND AT BANKS AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK (CONTINUED)

Currentand restrictedbalances with central bank

Internal rating grade
Standard (0 days)
Standard (1-30days)
Watch (31-60days)
Substandard (61-90 days)
Doubtful (91-180 days)
Loss (more than 180days)
Total

Internal rating grade
Standard (0 days)
Standard (1-30days)
Watch (31-60days)
Substandard (61-90 days)
Doubtful (91-180 days)
Loss (more than 180 days)
Total

Gross Carrying amount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 and Stage 2,3
Stage 1 poci Stgel  dpoci
12-month Lifetime 12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
8,544,260 - (13,217) - 8,531,043
(5,361,881) - - - (5,361,881)
247,346 (1,101) 246,245
- - (1,101 (1,101)
3,429,724 (14,318) 3,415,406
2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
19,498,241 - - 19,498,241
19,498,241 - - 19,498,241
2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
19,307,459 - - 19,307,459
19,307,459 - - 19,307,459
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7. CASH ON HAND AND AT BANKS AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK (CONTINUED)

As at 1 January 2020

All transfers

Derecognitions other thanwrite-
offs

Repaymentsandchange in cash
flow

New financialassets originated or
purchased

Write-offs

Foreign currency effectand other
movements

Net change in Profitand Loss
As at 31 December 2020

As at 1 January 2019

All transfers

Derecognitions other thanwrite-
offs

Repaymentsandchange in cash
flow

New financial assets originated or
purchased

Write-offs

Foreign currency effectand other
movements

Net change in Profitand Loss
As at 31 December 2019

Gross Carrying amount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 Stage 2,3
Stagel  hdpoct OBl hdPoci
12-month Lifetime 12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
19,307,459 (46,662) 19,260,797
190,782 (6,080) 184,702
- (6,080)
19,498,241 - (52,742) 19,445,500
Gross Carrying amount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 Stage 2,3
Stage 1 and POCI Stage 1 and POCI
12-month Lifetime 12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
14,421,855 (117,698) 14,304,157
4,885,604 71,036 4,956,640
- 71,036 71,036
19,307,459 - (46,662) - 19,260,797
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8. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Fixed Term Placements to Banks
Placements to Ziraat Bank - 4,000,000
Accrued interest - 1,389
Total - 4,001,389
Allowance for Expected Credit Losses - (17,703)
Fixed Term Placements to Banks - 3,983,686
2019
Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Standard (0days) 4,001,389 - - 4,001,389
Standard (1-30days) - - - -
Watch (31-60days) - - - -
Substandard (61-90 days) - - - -
Doubtful (91-180 days) - - - -
Loss (more than 180 days) - - - -
Total 4,001,389 - - 4,001,389
Gross Carrying amount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 Stage 2,3
Stgel  andpocl Stgel  andpocl
12-month Lifetime 12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
As at 1 January 2020 4,001,389 - (17,703) - 3,983,686
All transfers - -
Derecognitions other than i ) ) i i
write-offs
Repaymentsandchange in
cash flow (4,001,389) - 17,703 - 3,983,686
New financial assets originated
or purchased i ) ) i i
Write-offs - - - - -
Foreign currency effectand
other movements i ) ) i i
Net change in Profitand Loss - - 17,703 - 17,703
As at 31 December 2020 - - - - -
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8. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS(CONTINUED)

Gross Carrying amount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 Stage 2,3
Stage 1 and POCI Stage 1 and POCI
12-month Lifetime 12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
As at 1 January 2019 6,000,000 - (26,199) - 5,973,801
All transfers - -
Derecognitions other than ) i ) i i
write-offs
Repaymentsandchange in i i
cash flow (6,000,000) 26,199 (5,973,801)
New financial assets
originated or purchased 4,001,389 - (17,703) - 3,983,686
Write-offs - - - - -
Foreign currency effectand ) i ) i i
other movements
Eg:;hange inProfitand ) i 8,496 i 8.496
As at 31 December 2019 4,001,389 - (17,703) - 3,983,686
9. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Nominal Value — Bonds 1,350,000 5,170,000
Bonds 1,344,215 5,145,224
Interest Receivables 9,196 28,703
Amortization of discount 2,185 3,519
Amortization of premium - -
Net value of Bonds 1,355,596 5,177,446
Allowance for ECL/Impairment losses (10,693) (39,124)
Net book value of securities 1,344,904 5,138,322

Investments in securities represent investments in Government Treasury Bills and Bonds classified as held to

maturity and issued by the Government of the Republic of Kosovo.
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9. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST (CONTINUED)

2020

Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard (0 days) 1,355,596 - - 1,355,596
Standard (1-30days) - -
Watch (31-60days) - - - -
Substandard (61-90 days) - - - -
Doubtful (91-180 days) - - - -
Loss (more than 180 days)

Total 1,355,596 - - 1,355,596

Internal rating grade Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Standard (0 days) 5,177,446 - - 5,177,446
Standard (1-30days) - -
Watch (31-60days) - - - -
Substandard (61-90 days) - - - -
Doubtful (91-180 days) - - - -
Loss (more than 180days)

Total 5,177,446 - - 5,177,446
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9. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST (CONTINUED)

As at 1 January 2020
Alltransfers

Derecognitions other than write-
offs

Repaymentsandchange in cash
flow

New financial assets originated or
purchased

Write-offs

Foreign currency effectand other
movements

Net change in Profitand Loss
As at 31 December 2020

As at 1 January 2019

All transfers

Derecognitions other thanwrite-
offs

Repaymentsandchange in cash
flow

New financial assets originated
or purchased

Write-offs

Foreign currency effectand other
movements

Net change in Profitand Loss
As at 31 December 2019

Gross Carrying amount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 Stage 2,3
Stagel o dPoCl Stagel o 4poci
12-month Lifetime 12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
5,177,446 - (39,124) - 5,138,322
(3,920,299) - 29,208 - (3,891,091)
98,450 - 777) - 97,673
- - 28431 - 28,431
1,355,597 - (10,693) - 1,344,904
Gross Carrying amount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 Stage 2,3
Stagel  hd POCI Stagel  hdPpoCl
12-month Lifetime 12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
2,118,926 - (14,265) - 2,104,661
(993,331) - 6,723 - (986,608)
4,051,851 - (31,581) - 4,020,270
- - (24,859) - (24,859)
5,177,446 - (39,124) - 5,138,323
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10. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Commercial Loans
Individual Loans
Staff Loans
Overdrafts
Accrued interest

Total gross loans and advances to costumers

Deferred revenue on disbursement fee
Loan loss provisions
Net Loans

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

42,974,719 46,395,000
839,171 1,017,922
36,390 61,221
26,232,196 22,185,624
489,466 482,557
70,571,943 70,142,325
(67,559) (69,412)
(1,630,922) (1,757,885)
68,873,462 68,315,028

Movements in the impairment allowance in 2020 and 2019 are composed as follows:

Allowance as at 1 January
Charge/(Release) for the year

Allowance as at 31 December

31 December 2020

31 December 2019

Gross carrying amount for total loans are, as follows:

Internal Rating

Standard (0-30 days)

Watch (31-60 days)

Substandard (61-90 days)

Doubtful (91-180 days)

Loss (more than 180 days)

Accrued interest

Less: Deferred disbursement fee
Total Loans at amortized cost, gross
Less: Allowance for impairment
Loans and advances to customers, net

Internal Rating

Standard (0-30 days)

Watch (31-60 days)

Substandard (61-90 days)

Doubtful (91-180 days)

Loss (more than 180 days)

Accrued interest

Less: Deferred disbursement fee
Total Loans at amortized cost, gross
Less: Allowance for impairment
Loans and advances to customers, net

1,757,885 796,115

(126,963) 961,770

1,630,922 1,757,885

2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 POCI Total
67,967,084 415,167 - - 68,382,252
- 387,400 - - 387,400

- - 1,312,825 - 1,312,825

216,863 7,484 265,119 - 489,466
(65,616) (997) (945) - (67,558)
68,118,331 809,054 1,576,999 - 70,504,384
(574,948) (8,205)  (1,047,770) - (1,630,922)
67,543,384 800,849 529,229 - 68,873,462

2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 POCI Total
67,084,246 23,220 67,107,466
188,751 - - - 188,751
- 988,543 - - 988,543
49,476 - - - 49,476
- - 1,325,532 - 1,325,532
200,326 2,038 280,193 - 482,557
(28,815) (293) (40,303) - (69,412)
67,493,984 1,013,508 1,565,421 - 70,072,913
(622,080) (10,475)  (1,176,193) - (1,808,748)
66,871,903 1,003,034 389,228 - 68,264,165
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10. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

An analysis of changes in the gross carryingamount and the corresponding ECL allowances for loans are as

follows:

Total Loans

Gross carryingamount
asatlJanuary 2020
Transfers:

Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1

Paymentsand assets derecognized other

than write-offs

Changes to contractual cash flows due

to modificationsnot resulting in
derecognition

New loans originated

Gross carryingamount
asat31 December 2020

Total Loans

Gross carryingamount
asatlJanuary 2019
Transfers:

Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1

Paymentsandassets derecognized other

than write-offs

Changes to contractual cash flows due

to modificationsnot resultingin
derecognition

New loans originated

Gross carryingamount
asat31 December2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
12-month Lifetime Lifetime O”%'rr;zt;ag Total
ECL ECL ECL . .
impaired
67,522,799 1,013,802 1,605,725 - 70,142,326
(93,960) 93,960 - -
(228,382) - 228,382 - -
(111,839) 111,839 - -
(33,428,479) (23,359) (445,081) - (33,896,919
26,662,974 (162,512) 77,080 - 26,577,542
7,748,995 - - - 7,748,995
68,183,948 810,052 1,577,944 - 70,571,943
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Orlglnegt.etd Total
ECL ECL EcL . creat ota
impaired
78,988,445 1,029,904 2,444,146 - 82,462,495
(123,217) 123,217 - - -
(548,848) 548,848 - -
- (80,597) 80,597 - -
143,167 (143,167) -
(24,725,782) (650,222) (25,966) - (25,401,970)
(13,718,793) (23,313) 82,301 - (13,659,805)
22,278,436 820,185 - 23,098,621
67,522,800 1,013,800 1,605,725 - 70,142,325
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10.

An analysis in the Expected Credit Losses is presented below:

Total Loans

ECL amountasat1 January 2020
Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Derecognitionsother than write-offs
Changes to contractual cash flows due to
modificationsnot resultingin derecognition
New loans originated or purchased
Write-offs
FX and other movements
Netchangein Profitand Loss
ECL amountas at 31 December 2020

Total Loans

ECL amountas at 1 January 2019

Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Derecognitions other than write-offs

Changes to contractual cash flows due to

modifications not resultingin

derecognition

New loans originated or purchased

Write-offs

FX and other movements

Net change in Profit and Loss

ECL amountas at 31 December 2019

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
e Originated
12-month Lifetime e - .
ECL ECL LifetimeECL ) cre_dlt- Total
impaired
572,953 10,473 1,174,458 - 1,757,885
(808) 808 - -
(1,965) 1,965 - .
(1,012) 1,012 - -
(286,613) (203) (401,767) (688,583)
227,548 (1,861) 272,100 - 497,787
63,833 63,833
1,995 (2,268) (126,690) - (126,963)
574,948 8,205 1,047,768 - 1.630922
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
e Originated
12-month  Lifetime e - .
ECL ECL Lifetime ECL _ cre_dlt- Total
impaired
156,981 5,548 633,586 - 796,115
(1,062) 1,062 - - -
(165,719) 165,719 - -
1,232 (1,232) - -
- (32,462) 32,462 - -
(46,140) (3,736) (13,289) (63,165)
438,252 32,490 355,980 - 826,722
189,409 8,804 - 198,213
415,972 4,926 540,872 - 961,770
572,953 10,474 1,174,458 - 1,757,885
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11. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Leasehold Furniture, fixtures
improvements IT Equipment and equipment Other Assets Vehicles Total

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2019 862,682 213,540 235,202 93,094 49,450 1,453,968
Additions 5,937 2,234 21,500 1,399 - 31,070
Disposals - - - - - -
Balance at December 31,2019 868,619 215,774 256,702 94,493 49,450 1,485,038
Additions 786 839 358 - 1,983
Disposals - - - - (26,950) (26,950)
Balance at December 31,2020 869,405 216,613 257,060 94,493 22,500 1,460,071
Accumulated depreciation

Balance at 1 January 2019 213,015 91,738 139,364 46,251 40,063 530,431
Charge forthe year 90,478 43,449 34,740 12,166 5,638 186,471
Eliminated on disposals - - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2019 303,493 135,187 174,104 58,417 45,701 716,902
Charge forthe year 91,298 43,273 23,863 10,950 3,749 173,133
Eliminated on disposals (26,950) (26,950)
Balance at 31 December 2020 394,791 178,460 197,967 69,367 22,500 863,085
Net Balance at 31 December 2019 565,126 80,587 82,598 36,076 3,749 768,136
Net Balance at 31 December 2020 474,614 38,153 59,093 25,126 - 596,986

The value of EUR 16,391 and EUR 52,003 categorized into the furniture, fixures and equipment category represent assets received as donations fromHead Office during the

fiscal years 0f2015 and 2014.
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Software Total

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2019 139,069 139,069
Additions 4,722 4,722
Disposals - -
Balance at December 31,2019 143,791 143,791
Additions 15,272 15,272
Disposals - -
Balance at December 31,2020 159,064 159,064
Accumulated Amortization

Balance at 1 January 2019 43,758 43,758
Charge forthe year 11,569 11,569
Eliminated on disposals - -
Balance at 31 December 2019 55,327 55,327
Charge forthe year 11,303 11,303
Eliminated on disposals -
Balance at 31 December 2020 66,630 66,630
Net Balance at 31 December 2019 88,464 88,464
Net Balance at 31 December 2020 92,434 92 434
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13. RIGHT OF USE ASSET

Buildings Total
Cost
At 1 January 2019 2,273,091 2,273,001
Charge for the year (lease modifications) - -
At 31 December 2019 2,273,091 2,273,001
Charge for the year (lease modifications) (62,104) (62,104)
At 31 December 2020 2,210,986 2,210,986
Accumulated depreciation - -
At 1January 2019 - -
Charge forthe year (258,132) (258,132)
At 31 December 2019 (258,132) (258,132)
Charge forthe year (244,012) (244,012)
At 31 December 2020 (502,144) (502,144)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 2,014,959 2,014,959
At 31 December 2020 1,708,843 1,708,843

On February 2020, the contractual amount of one of the leases the Bank has entered decreased, and as such
impacted also the Right of Use Asset amountand Lease liability by decreasing it for EUR 62,104.

Amounts recognizedin profit and loss

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Expense relating to short-termleases

Bxpense relating to leases of low value assets
Expense relating to variable lease payments not
included in the measurementofthe lease liability

Fixed payments (includingamortization of prepayment)

Variable payments
Total payments

31 December 2020

244,012
138,819

9,840

31 December 2020

333,655

333,655
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14. REPOSSESSED COLLATERALS

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Repossessed assets 642,333 206,667
Impairment for repossessed assets - (41,334)
Total 642,333 165,333
Repossessedassets consistofa residential building repossessed during 2018 and 2020.
Gross Carrying amount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 Stage 2,3
Stagel  ndpocl Stagel  andpoci
12-month Lifetime 12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
As at 1 January 2020 206,667 - (41,334) - 165,333
All transfers - - - - -
Derecognitions other than write-
offs i i i i i
Repayments and change in cash i i i i i
flow
New financial assets originated or 435 666 i ) ) 435 666
purchased
Write-offs - - - - -
Foreign currency effect and other ) i 41,334 ) 41,334
movements
Net change in Profitand Loss - - 41,334 - 41,334
As at 31 December 2020 642,333 - - - 642,333
Gross Carryingamount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 Stage 2,3
Stage 1 and POCI Stage 1 and POCI
12-month Lifetime 12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
As at 1 January 2019 206,667 - (43,020) - 163,647
All transfers - - - - -
Derecognitions other than write-
offs i i i i i
Repayments and change in cash ) ) ) ) )
flow
New financial assets originated or
purchased i i i i i
Write-offs - - - - -
Foreign currency effect and other
move?nents Y ) i 1,686 ) 1,686
Net change in Profitand Loss - - 1,686 - 1,686
As at 31 December 2019 206,667 - (41,334) - 165,333
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15. PREPAID INCOME TAX

Prepaid income tax amounting 9,486 EUR, is comprised from balance of prepayment carried forward from
previous years. Based on tax laws in Kosovo, prepayment income tax cannot be netted off against income tax

payable, untilthis is allowed by taxauthorities.

16. OTHER ASSETS

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Prepayments 9,616 28,807
Otherreceivables 10,070 9,752
Total 19,686 38,559
Adjustmentfor ECL (83) (73)
Total 19,603 38,486

An analysis of the gross amount of other assets by ratingis presented below:

Internal rating grade 2020 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2 Total
Standard (0days) 19,686 - 19,686
Standard (1-30days) - - - -
Watch (31-60days) - - - -
Substandard (61-90 days) - - - -
Doubtful (91-180 days) - - - -
Loss (more than 180 days) - - - -
Total 19,686 - - 19,686
Internal rating grade 2019 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 2 Total
Standard (0days) 38,559 - - 38,559
Standard (1-30days) - - - -
Watch (31-60days) - - - -
Substandard (61-90 days) - - - -
Doubtful (91-180 days) - - - -
Loss (more than 180 days) - - - -
Total 38,559 - - 38,559
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16. OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

An analysis of gross carrying amountand ECL by stages, is presented below:

As at 1 January 2020
All transfers
Derecognitions other than write-offs

Repay ments and change in cash flow
New financial assets originated or
purchased

Write-offs

Foreign currency effect and other
movements

Net change in Profitand Loss
As at 31 December 2020

As at 1 January 2019

All transfers

Derecognitions other than write-offs
Repayments and change in cash flow
New financial assets originated or
purchased

Write-offs

Foreign currency effect and other
movements

Netchange in Profitand Loss

As at 31 December 2019

Gross Carryingamount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 Stage 2,3
Stagel  angpoct S®®€l angpoci
12-month Lifetime 12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
38,559 (73) 38,486
(18,873) (10) (18,883)
- (10) (10)
19,686 - (83) - 19,603
Gross Carryingamount ECL Total
Stage 2,3 Stage 2,3
Stage 1 and POCI Stage 1 and POCI
12-month Lifetime  12-month Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL
242,125 - (1,976) - 240,149
25,562 - 1,903 - 27,464
(229,127) - - - (229,127)
- - 1,903 - 1,903
38,559 - (73) - 38,486
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17. DUE TO CUSTOMERS

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Current Accounts
Individuals- CA 5,789,853 3,354,258
Corporations 5,593,036 4,835,702
State owned entities 36,032 3,654
Correspondent banks 1,597,530 80,282
Non-profit organizations 383,260 511,000
Total currentaccounts 13,399,711 8,784,896
Term Deposits
Individuals— TDA 35,062,899 32,680,672
Corporations 19,941,084 26,221,411
State owed entities 10,000,000 5,650,000
Non-profit organizations 1,500,000 1,500,000
Interest payable — deposit 1,038,312 822,549
Total term deposits 67,542,295 66,874,632
Total deposits 80,942,006 75,659,528

Term deposits bear fixed interest rates ranging from 0.5% - 3.5% as of 31 December 2020 (2019: 0.1% - 3.4%).

18. DUE TO BANKS

Fixed-term deposits: 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
IS Bank AG 6,000,000 -
TEB Bank - 6,000,000
Bank for Business - 3,000,000
Economic Bank - 2,600,000
Interest Payable - Local Banks - 12,859
Total 6,000,000 11,612,859

The short-term borrowing with commercial banks bear interest rates from 1% p.a (2019: 0.80% up to 1.5% p.a.

p.a.).
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19. DUE TO HEAD OFFICE AND OTHER AFFILIATES
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Current accountwith Head Office 1,249,763 1,950,410
Long term borrowing 197,512 1,012,139
Interest payable - HQ 1,469 7,632
Total 1,448,744 2,970,181

The long-termborrowings bear interest rates ranging from 2.15% p.a. to 3.85% p.a. (2019: 1.75% p.a.to 3.85%
p.a.)and have remaining weighted average maturity of 3years.

Depending on needs for additional disbursements, the Branch has the right at its discretion, to renew or obtain
additional funds at shortnotice fromHead Office, as well as return to Head Office any extra liquidity.

20. OTHER TAXES AND CONTRIBUTIONS PAYABLE

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Withholdingtaxon salary 4,965 6,027
Pension contributions payable 4,015 4,868
Withholdingtaxon rentand interest 2,289 1,638
Corporate taxpayable 71,343 10,638
Tax payable TTD 19,345 10,736
Total 101,957 33,907

21. DEFERRED REVENUE

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Deferred revenue - 1,840
Total - 1,840

Deferred revenueis related to a donation of office furniture and equipment from Head Office to the Bank.

22. OTHER LIABILITIES

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Otheraccruals 240,191 95,935
Expected losses fromoff-balance sheet items 67,843 99,020
Total 308,034 194,954
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22. OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Internal Rating 2020

Standard (0-30 days)
Watch (31-60 days)
Substandard (61-90 days)
Doubtful (91-180 days)
Loss (more than 180 days)
Total

Internal Rating 2019

Standard (0-30 days)
Watch (31-60 days)
Substandard (61-90 days)
Doubtful (91-180 days)
Loss (more than 180 days)
Total

2020 - letters of guarantees and unused overdraft limit

Stagel  giage2  Stage3  POCI Total
13,251,724 1153 : T 13252877
13,051,724 1153 : T 13250877

2019 - letters of guarantees and unused overdraft limit

Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI Total
16,742,507 - - - 16,742,507
153,639 - - - 153,639

- 273 - - 273

524 - - - 524

- - 230,873 - 230,873
16,896,670 273 230,873 - 17,127,815

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances for letters of

guarantees are as follows:

Letters of guarantees

Gross carrying amountas at
January 1, 2020

Transfers:

Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 1
Derecognitions other than write-offs
Repayments and change in cash flow
New loans originated or purchased
Write-offs

FXand other movements

Gross carryingamountas at
December 31,2020

Stagel Stage?2 Stage 3 POCI
12-month Lifetime Lifetime Or'gépea;ﬁ? Total
ECL ECL ECL . .
impaired
16,896,670 273 230,873 - 17,127,815
(11) 11 - -
(1,905) 1,905 - )
(17) 17 - -
(6,582,369) 885  (232,795) (6,814,278)
2,939,340 - - 2,939,340
13,251,724 1,153 13,252,877
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22. OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Letters of guarantees

Gross carryingamountas at
January 1, 2019

Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 1
Derecognitions other than write-offs
Repay ments and change in cash flow
New loans originated or purchased
Write-offs
FXand other movements

Gross carrying amountas at
December 31,2019

Letters of guarantees

ECL amountas at 1 January 2020
Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2to Stage 1
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 1
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Derecognitions other than write-offs
New loans originated or purchased
Write-offs
FXand other movements
Netchange in Profitand Loss

ECL amountas at 31 December 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
e Originated
12-month e Lifetime :
ECL Lifetime ECL ECL _ cre_dlt- Total
impaired
10,975,821 189,519 225,195 - 11,390,535
(2,500,475) (11,390,535) (428) - (13,891,439)
3,897,940 11,201,289 6,106 15,105,335
4,523,384 4,523,384
16,896,670 273 230,873 - 17,127,815
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI
12-month  Lifetime Lifetime Pu r?:?:csiietc-l Total
ECL ECL ECL . .
impaired
97,284 2 1,733 - 99,020
(16) - 16 - -
(42,148) 8 (1,749) - (43,890)
12,713 - - - 12,713
(29,452) 7 (1,733) - (31,177)
67,833 10 - - 67,843
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22.  OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Letters of guarantees

ECL amountas at 1 January 2019
Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 2to Stage 3
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 2
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 1
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Derecognitions other than write-offs
New loans originated or purchased
Write-offs
FXand other movements
Net change in Profitand Loss
ECL amountas at 31 December 2019

23. PROVISIONS

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 POCI

12- e e Purchased
month b fe%@i L fe%@ﬁ credit- Total

ECL impaired
16,525 455 - - 16,980
217 (217) - - -
14,307 - - - 14,307
(2,736) - - - (2,736)
68,154 2 2,312 - 70,469
79,942 (215) 2,312 - 82,040
96,467 240 2,312 - 99,020

Forthe yearended December 31, 2020, the Bank has recognized a provision for an outstanding legal claimin the
amount of EUR 105,821 (2019: EUR 97,795).

24. LEASE LIABILITIES

Maturity analysis:
Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Onwards

Total

Analysedas:
Non-current
Current

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
208,782 123,884

224,281 222,486

240,933 238,905

233,045 256,538

231,931 239,851

672,909 902,743

1,811,882 1,984,407
1,603,100 1,860,523

208,782 123,884
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25.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at December 31,2020, the share capitalamountedto EUR 10,000 thousand (2019: EUR 10,000 thousand).

26.

Interest income fromloans and advances to customers
Interest income fromsecurities
Interest income fromdeposits in local banks

NET INTEREST INCOME

Total interestincome

Interestexpenses

Interest expenses for deposits
Interest expenses for borrowings
Interest expenses for lease liability

Total interestexpenses
Net interestincome

27.

Fees for letter of guarantees
Fees forearly termination of contracts
Otherfee and commission income

Total fee and commissionincome
Fee and commission expense
Net fee and commission income

28.

NET FEE AND COMMISION INCOME

NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Foreign exchangegain
Foreign exchangeloss
Net foreign exchange gain

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
4,436,243 4,748,211
43,144 60,959
3,541 5,356
4,482,929 4,814,526
(1,612,318) (1,319,687)
(33,122) (692,155)
(138,819) (144,497)
(1,784,258) (2,156,339)
2,698,670 2,658,187
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
369,329 147,089
144,532 7,903
92,954 113,443
606,315 268,435
(31,655) (9,101)
575,160 259,334
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
1,659,185 114,844
(1,567,410) (90,332)
91,776 24511
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29. OTHER INCOME

Income from assetdonation

Interest income fromprevious years corrections

Income from sale ofassets
Total fee and commissionincome

30. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Fees paid to CBK

Royalty fee

Provisionsfor legal cases
Consultancy and auditing
Payments systemexpenses
Communication expenses
Representation expenses
Utilities and Fuel
Maintenance and repair
Deposit insurance expenses
Memberships

Security expenses

Operating leaseexpenses forvehicle

Otherexpenses
Othertaxand fee expenses
Total other operating expenses

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Salaries

Welfare and pension contribution expenses

Health insurance
Otheremployee compensations
Total employee benefits

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
3,155 8,385
8,843 25,860
8,290 -
20,288 34,245
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
139,983 137,668
121,646 105,920
8,026 97,795
99,197 94,518
82,267 87,281
73,587 77,259
1,599 57,062
37,491 34,140
31,141 32,497
25,738 22,934
14,008 13,669
15,717 16,665
9,840 4,100
28,202 40,057
38,002 146,642
726,444 968,207
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
675,629 749,126
61,998 67,439
9,874 9,936
19,720 51,652
767,220 878,153

The Bank had 30 employees as at December 31, 2020 (29 employees as at December 31, 2019). Other
compensations for international employees include health insurance, transportation and other related costs of

transferto Kosovo.
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32. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 is composed of the

following:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Currenttaxexpense 188,658 142,200
Deferred tax (5,720) (98,108)
Total income tax 182,938 44,092

Reconciliation of prepaid tax/'taxpayables
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Current taxexpense (188,658) (142,200)
Advance payments duringthe year 117,315 131,562
Tax payable (71,343) (10,638)

Tax returns are filed annually but the profits or losses declared for tax purposes remain provisional until the tax
authorities examine the returns andthe records of the taxpayerand a finalassessment is issued. Kosovo taxlaws

and regulations are subject to interpretations by the taxauthorities.

Deferred tax is calculated based on the enacted taxrate of 10%. The carry forward period for any taxlosses in

accordancewith the laws in Kosovo is four years.
Movementin deferred taxliability is presented below:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Opening balance 26,256 124,365
Change in accounting policy (31,643) -
Movementofdeferred tax (5,720) (98,108)
Deferredtax liability (asset) as at year end (11,107) 26,256
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32. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The table belowrepresents the calculation of corporate income tax for the yearended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019:

Effective Year ended Effective Year ended
Tax rate 31 December 2020 Tax rate 31 December 2019
Profitbefore tax 1,707,183 (311,142)
Tax calculatedat 10% 10% 170,718 10% (31,142)
Tax effect of interest earned
0, 0,
frominvestmentsin Kosovo 10% (4,314) 10% (6,096)
Governments securities
Tax effect of additional
release/impairment for CBK 10% - 10% 104,686
provisioning
Tax effect of non-deductible o o
expenses 10% 1,503 10% 13,430
Tax effect of exchange loss 10% (4,766) 10% 770
_Tax effect ofthe accru_ed 10% 13,823 10% 57176
interest on termdeposits
i i 0, 0,
Tax effect on the impairment 10% (4,133) 10% (169)
of repossessed assets
Tax effect on the differences
in accrued interest for CBK 10% 14,084 10% (11,796)
and IFRS purposes
Adjustmentfor depreciation 10% 10%
of right of use asset 24,401 25813
Rent payments 10% (33,365) 10% (34,876)
Adjustmentfor legal provisions 10% 803 10% 9,780
Adjustmentforinterest 10% 10%
expenses lease liability 13,862 14,450
Otherincome 10% 64 10% 147
Nontaxable expected credit
losses 10% (4,041) 10% -
Total corporate income tax o o
expenses 10% 188,658 10% 142,200
Deferredtax liability from
temporary differences - (5,720) - (98,108)
recognized
Total tax charge 182,938 - 44,092
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Tiirkiye js Bankas1 A.S.— Branch in Kosovo is a branch of Tiirkiye Is Bankasi1 A.S. The major shareholders of
Tirkiye Is Bankas1A.S and their participations in share capital as at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

- IsbankPensionFund, acting onbehalf of both active and retired Bank employees: 39.95%;

- FreeFloat: 31.96% (about 60% of the free float is held by foreign investors);

- Ataturk’s Shares: 28.09%. The Republican People’s Party (CHP) is the testamentary heir to the shares initially
held by Ataturk (founder of Isbank).

Related party balances andtransactions as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are composed as follows:
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Due from Head Office

Current accounts with Head Office 69,470 36,441
Due to Head Office

Current accounts with Head Office 1,249,763 1,950,410
Long term borrowings 197,512 1,012,139
Interest payable related to short

and Iong -t{\rm borrowing 1,469 1632
Deferred revenuefromdonated assets 1,840
Due from other related parties (subsidiaries of HO)

Current accounts with Is Bank AG, Germany 7,961,804 243,205

Due to other related parties
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Income generated from Head Office

Otherincome from donated assets 1,840 8,385
Expense incurred with related parties

Managementremuneration 353,010 190,018
Interest expense for short-termborrowings 11,936 561,440
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34. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Guarantees and credit commitments 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Guarantees in favor of customers 10,743,571 11,272,645
Loans approvedbutnot yet disbursed 11,070,000 15,450,000
Undrawn credit commitments 2,509,305 5,940,976
Total 24,322,877 32,663,621
Non-cancelable lease commitments 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Less than one year 87,191 51,012
Total 87,191 51,012
Legal

In 2020, the Bank has recognized a provision of 8 thousand for an outstanding claim, in addition to EUR 97
thousand recognized in 2019. Other outstanding legal claims and litigations are in the normal activity of the Bank.

35. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no reportable subsequent events to be disclosed.
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